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ADDENDUM #1 
RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS 

Liberty Hills Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
 
 

QUESTION 

1. Are you able to provide any additional information on schedule goals for this project?  I see a 
goal to initiate tree clearing this winter to avoid impacting the bats.   What do you see for the 
timing of a notice of award on this project to meet this goal as I see a 60%, 90%, and 100% plan 
set needed prior to bid but a goal to have any tree clearing occur between 10/1/25 and 3/31/26 
(with a completion of next fall). 
 

ANSWER 

THE SCHEDULE IS FLEXIBLE AND WE ARE OPEN TO SUGGESTIONS FROM THE CONSULTANTS ON HOW 
BEST TO REACH OUR GOAL OF SEWER CONSTRUCTION COMPLETE BY FALL OF 2026. OPTIONS MAY 
INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, A SEPARATE BID PACKAGE FOR TREE CLEARING OR REDUCED 
DELIVERABLES. NOTICE OF AWARD IS ANTICIPATED BY AUGUST 29TH, ASSUMING NO INTERVIEWS ARE 
NECESSARY. 
 

QUESTION 

2. Can you please confirm the scope of the project?   The RFP notes 2,829 of sewer and 5 manholes 
requiring rehabilitation.   It appears this includes the 27” sewer from MH 13-12-11-10, correct 
(MH 11 to MH 10 not part of the DLZ report)?   MH 01 to 13 (18”) is not included.  MH rehab is 
included on the 15” and 18” pipes.  Can you confirm those manholes were not previously 
cementitiously lined?   MH 01 and MH 13 appear to be original concrete in the inspections while 
MH 02, 03, and 04 appear to have some form of cementitious lining already applied, though the 
inspections state otherwise. 

 
ANSWER 

YES, THE RFP REFERENCE IS TO THE 27” SEWER MANHOLE 13-12-11-10. THE SEWER PIPE BETWEEN 
MANHOLES 01 TO MH 13 WAS NOT INCLUDED IN THE PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT BECAUSE IT HAS NOT 
BEEN TELEVISED, BUT THE COUNTY WOULD BE OPEN TO UPSIZING AND/OR REHAB ON IT BEING ADDED 
TO THIS SEWER REHAB PROJECT.  
 
MANHOLES 02, 03, AND 04 HAVE NOT BEEN PREVIOUSLY REHABBED. THE LIGHT-COLORED MATERIAL 
COATING THE MANHOLE WALLS AND STEPS IN THE APPENDIX C INSPECTION PHOTOS IS THE PRODUCT 
OF MICROBIAL-INDUCED CONCRETE CORROSION. 
 
QUESTION 

3. Can record plans for the 18” Falcon Ridge Section 4 tie-in to MH 01 be provided?  
 
ANSWER 

YES – SEE ATTACHMENT 1 TO THIS RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS.  
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QUESTION 

4. Can record plans for the 27” concrete sewer inside of the 60” casing pipe be provided?  
 
ANSWER 

YES – SEE ATTACHMENT 2 TO THIS RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS.  

 
QUESTION 

5. Is there any hydraulic modeling information that can be provided on the flows through the 27” 
sewer for normal flow as well as overall capacity goals?   Can an HGL be provided from MH 10 
upstream to MH 05?   History of WIBs? 

 
ANSWER 

SWMM MODEL RESULTS FOR THE EXISTING CONDITION, 25-YEAR 24-HOUR DESIGN STORM (THE 
COUNTY’S TARGET LEVEL OF SERVICE) INDICATE THAT THE 27” SEWER IS OVER ITS FULL FLOW CAPACITY 
AND SURCHARGING. HOWEVER, THERE ARE NO KNOWN WATER IN BASEMENTS (WIBs) OR SANITARY 
SEWER OVERFLOWS (SSOs). THE COUNTY IS CURRENTLY IMPLEMENTING SEPARATE LONG-TERM 
PROJECTS TO REDUCE FLOW TO THE 27” SEWER BY (A) DIVERTING THE GOLF VILLAGE FORCE MAIN TO A 
NEW TRUNK SEWER TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY A COUNTY ENGINEER ROADWAY PROJECT ALONG HOME 
ROAD, AND (B) PERFORMING ADDITIONAL FLOW MONITORING AND INVESTIGATIONS IN THE 
TRIBUTARY AREA OF THE 18” SEWER TO IDENTIFY AND REDUCE INFITLRATION AND INFLOW. 
 
QUESTION 

6. Are the peak flows in the DLZ report measured flows or are they modeled flows for a specific 
event? 
 

ANSWER 

THE PEAK FLOWS IN TABLE 3 OF THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT ARE MODELED, PEAK HOURLY 
FLOWS FOR THE 1-YEAR 24-HOUR DESIGN STORM. 
 
QUESTION 

7. If the 1147 feet of sewer downstream of MH 11 is being added, has this been CCTV’ed?  Can the 
CCTV data on the MH 13 to MH 12 to MH 11 be provided? 

 
ANSWER 

YES IT WAS CCTV’ED. ALL CCTV WILL BE PROIVDED TO THE SELECTED CONSULTING FIRM AFTER THE 
NOTICE OF AWARD.  
 
QUESTION 

8. Environmental assessments are requested for areas impacted by bypass pumping.  Is the Tylers 
Run stream bank mitigation desired to be part of this project as well? 
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ANSWER 

YES. THE MITIGATION SHOULD BE PART OF THE PROJECT AND WE WOULD RELY ON OUR CONSULTANTS 
TO DETERMINE THE SCHEDULE BASED ON THE REQUIRED ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENTS AND IF THIS 
IS BEST TO DESIGN/BID/CONTRACT OUT SEPARATELY OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE SEWER 
CONSTRUCTION.  
 

QUESTION 

9. Can you please provide the details of the $2M construction cost estimate?   The DLZ Report 
(Section 2.0) alludes to the recommendations and costs being included, but the report did not 
contain any of these costs. 

  
ANSWER 

COST ESTIMATES WERE NOT INCLUDED IN THE SCOPE OF THE PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING REPORT AND 
THE REFERENCE IN SECTION 2 IS A TYPOGRAPHICAL ERROR. THE $2M CONSTRUCTION COST IS AN 
INTERNAL PLANNING ESTIMATE FOR 2026 BUDGETING PURPOSES. 
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